UNITED NATIONS

ECONOMIC ; 4
AN D %; M E/1980/WG.1/SR.20

30 April 1930

SQCEAL COUNCEL : ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

Distr.
GENERAL

First regular session, 1980

SESSIONAL WORKING GROUP ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE INTERNATIONAL
COVENANT ON ECONOMIC, SOCIAL AND CULTURAL RIGHTS

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 20th MEETING
Held at Headquarters, New York,
on Friday, 25 April 1980, at 10.30 a.m.

Chairman: Mr. NAGY (Hungary):

CONTENTS

Consideration of the reports submitted in accordance with Council resolution
1988 (LX) by States Parties concerning rights covered by articles 6 to 9 of the
Covenant (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages, preferably in
the same language as the text to which they refer. They should be set forth iu a
"memorandum and also, if possible, iacorporated in a copy of the record. They
should be sent within one week of the date of this document to the Chief, Official
Records Editing Section, Department of Conference Services, room A-3550, 866 United
Nations Plaza.

Any corrections to the records of the meetings of this session will be
consolidated in a single corrigendum, to be issued shortly after the end of the
session.

80-55585 /e

10 &



/1980/WG.1/SR. 20
English
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.50 a.m.

CONSIDERATION OF THR REPORTS SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCT WITH COUYICIL RESOLUTION
1988 (LX) BY STATES PARTIES CONCERNING RIGHTS COVERED BY ARTICLES 6 TO S OF THE
COVENANT (continued)

Report of Spain (5/19738/8/Add.26)

1. lirs. JIMENEZ-BUITRAGUENO (Observer for Spain) said that as a result of the
democratization process that had been taking place in Spain in recent years, the
new Spanish Constitution had been adopted in December 1970, and under it the
rights covered by the Covenant had received greater protection than previously.
wo aspects of particular importance were the lowering of the age of majority

from 23 to 138 years; and recognition of full equality between men and women which
had had the immediate effect of opening up numerous professional opportunities to
women. lioreover, for the first time it had been laid down that family
responsibilities were to be shared equally between husband and wife. The question
of survivors' pensions for widowers was currently under consideration.

2. The question of trade union rights and freedoms was covered in the
Constitution. Workers had the right to work, the right to take up employment of
their own choosing, the right to form trade unions and the right to strike. The
importance of full employment and vocational training was also stressed. Iew
basic labour legislation was currently under consideration.

3. On a parallel with the process of democratization, Spain was undergoing a
process of decentralization. In March 1980 the Boletin Oficial del Estado had
nmade reference to highly complex legal difficulties that were being encountered
in connexion with that second process. The Ministry of Labour had delegated a
number of its responsibilities to autonomous institutions dealing with such
questions as employment, social studies, leisure and arbitration.

L. Spain's social security legislation was in keeping with the provisions of the
Covenant, and the regulations in that respect exceeded the minimum standards
required by the International Labour Organisation (ILO). Further labour
regulations were under consideration. Important guestions in that connexion

were regulation of such matters as special labour situations, training contracts,
part-time work, fixed-term contracts, geographic mobility and working conditions.
An important decree had been issued in April 1980 to enforce regulations on
working conditions.

5. Iir. SALUENPERA (Finland) said that it was clear from the report that in recent
years development in the field of the protection of human rights had been very
rapid in Spain.

6. With regard to the entitlement of any worker responsible for the care of
certain categories of persons to a reduction of at least one third in his or her
working day, referred to on page 4 of the report, he wished to knov what Spain's
experience was in that respect. He wondered, in particular, whether the
reduction in the working day led to employment discrimination against the workers

in question.



E/1980/WG.1/SR.20
Lnglish
Page 3

(i1ar. Salmenperd, Finland)

T. He requested clarification about the statement on page 19 that in 1976 the
number of wnemployed workers had reached an estimated total of 553,789, and the
indication in the first table on page 53 that the averare number of recipients of
unemployient benefits per month in 1976 was listed az 246,750 persons, since it
appeared that almost 50 per cent of the uneaployed persons in 1976 had not received
benefits.

8. Mr. ABDUL-AZIZ (Libyan Arab Jamahiriya) said that the report before the
Vorking Group demonstrated the importance that the Spanish Government attached
to improving the situation of the workers in that country.

9. With regard to the reference on page 3 to the legal age of admission to
employment, he asked whether there was any legislation covering the employment of
persons below the age of 16, if such employment existed in Spain. He also
requested information about the entitlement of aliens to social security benefits:
he assumed that the nationalities listed on page 6 received preferential treatment.

10. Mr. AL-KATSI (Iraq) said that it was clear that Spain had achieved much in
the field of human rights. He requested further information concerning efforts
made by the Spanish Government in recent years to improve ccnditions for Spanish
migrant workers.,

11. lir. FUJII (Japan). referrinz to the information relating to implementation of
article 7 (d) of the Covenant, requested further details about the implementation
of the regulations on remuneration for public holidays, particularly where part-
time work and workers in small enterprises were concerned. He asked whether small
enterprises found it difficult to pay wages for public holidays, and whether the
Government subsidized them in that respect. He also wished to know whether
employers were penalized if they violated the labour legislation.

12. Mr. SKOTNIKOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics), referring to the
restrictive policies adopted by a number of host countries which received Spanish
workers, asked what measures the Government of Spain had taken on either a
bilateral or a multilateral basis to solve that problem. He also requested
specific figures with regard to trends in the level of unemployment in Spain,
including the general trend in unemployment following Spain's accession to the
Covenant .

13. ur. JAYCOCK (Barbados), noting the statement on page 5 of the report that it
had never been necessary to take measures against racial discrimination because

of Spain's ethnic unity, asked whether there was any form of protection for aliens
in Spain, especially for those who did not fit into the country's ethnic pattern.

14, With regard to the statewent on page 28 that the number of hours of overtime
might not exceed two hours a day or 120 hours a year, he asked whether those
restrictions applied even in cases where a worker was willing to work longer hours.



L/1960/10G.1/8R.20

Inglish
Page b
15, ilr. SASOJ (International Labour Creanisation) said that the process of change

in Opain wags reflected in the third report oi the International Labour Organisation
(ILO) (E/1950/35).

16. With regard to article 6 of the Covenant, he drew attention to the comments
made by the Committec of iLxperts concerning the employment situation in Spain.

17. VWith regard to the implementation of article 7, and in connexion with the
question of the criteria and procedurec adopted for reaching decisions regarding
prowotion in employment in the private sector, it was appropriate to refer to the
second report of the ILO (E/1979/33). He also drew attention to the comments made
by the Committee of Fxperts concerning the implementation of a number of ILO
conventions relating to safe and healthy working conditions.

1. In connexion with article 3, the Committee of Ixperts had requested information
concerning certain temporary restrictions relating to wage clauses in collective
agreements and to the risht to strike in certain situations.

19. Vith repard to article 9, the Committee of Lxperts had recognized that *“he
general reform of the social security system had led to institutional changes Dbut
had felt that information on the results of the current reorganization of that
systewm would be desirable.

20, irs. JIMENEZ-BUITRAGUEMO (Observer for Spain), replying to the first question
raised by the representative of Finland, said that no study had been conducted

on the scheme under which any worker responsible for the care of certain categories
of persons was entitled to a reducticn in his or her working day. Although the
Spanish family was still very traditional , attitudes were changing, and among
student couples, for example, it was beconing wore common for husband and wife to
share fanily resvonsibilities. Recently., her Government had taken a number of
steps to protect unemploved young people, particularly women with family
responsibilities. The basic legislation in that respect took such problems into
account and established approupriate priorities. Uith regard to the second guestion
asked by the representative of Finland concerning unemvloyment benefits, the
situation had improved, and the number of persons receiving such benefits was
approaching 60 to 65 per cent.

21. In connexion with the first question raised by the representative of the Libyan
Arab Jamahiriya, Spain did not allow the emplovment of persons below the age of 16,
and employers who employed persons below that are were subject to heavy fines.

There were incentives [or employers and new forizs of employment contracts designed
to guarantee employment for young people between the ages of 16 and 16. WUith regard
to the question of the employment of aliens in Spain, there was unfortunately an
imbalance on the labour market. There was a lack of qualified personnel in some
cases, and a number of companies employed aliens; nevertheless, it was considered
that new employment opportunities should be set aside for Spanish nationals.
Unemployment benefits were the same for both Spaniards and aliens. The question of
unemployment benefits was covered by bilateral agreements. In the past there had
been different treatment for Spaniards and aliens, but such discrimination had
virtually disappeared.



2/1980/WG.1/SR.20
'nglish
Pace 5

(:rs. Jirmcnez-Ruitraguetio, Observer., Spain)

22. TIn relation to the questicn asked by the rerresentative of Iraq about nigrant
workers, there were sone emigrant workers who adapted very wvell to their countries
of emipration and returned to Spain only on vacation: others came back with
illusions about the Opanish democratic system, which was still in the carly stages;
there were also many problems which could not all be solved at once. Returning
emigrants were entitled to ihe same unemployment benefits as other Spanish workers,
even 1f they had not contributed to wewployment insurance scheues.

23. VUith regard to the questions asked by the rerrvesentative of Japan, she said
that, under the labour legislation, public holidays and rest days were paid;

there vas a fixed number of holidays per year, and other holidays had to be made

up in compensatory time. The minimum number of paid holidays was 23 days a year.
Vorkers under 13 or over 60 years of ave were entitled to one month's paid

holidays a year. The violation of the labour legislation was. of course, penalized
in accordance with the seriousness ot the violation.

2. On the question raised by the representative of the Soviet Union, statistics
on unemployment could be obtained if he so wished. 1In thet connexion, she noted
that there were more returning emigrants than new iumigsrants and that those
individuals were entitled to unemplovyment insurance on the saie terms as other
workers.

25. Replying to the questions raised by the representative of Darbados, she said
that racial discrimination had never existed in Spain. As to the recent
legislation on working hours, a maximum of two hours overtime a day, 15 hours a
month and 120 hours a year could be worked, and supplementary hours were paid at
over-time rates under collective or individual contracts, the rate had to be at
least 75 per cent more than regular pay. The trade unions and the Government were
tryins to reduce the amount of overtime worked in order to prrovide employment for
uore workers,

26, Mr. FUJIT (Japan) asked whether the provisions under article 7 (d) of the
Covenant applied to part-time workers and, if so, in what way they were apnplied.

27. lirs. JILEJEZ--BUITRBAGULLO (Observer for Spain) said that part-time work was a
new formula and was not yet fully refulated. It was intended primarily for
individuals with family resronsibilities, and it also helyed to provide more
employment. lHolidays for part-time workers were paid in proportion to their
salasries.

Report of Jamaica (E/1978/8/Add.27)

26, Mr. BARTLITT (Observer for Jamaica) said that Jamaica had participated actively
in the negotiations which had led to the adoption of the International Covenants

on Human Rirhts and it had ratified the International Covenant on Economic, Social
and Cultural Rights in an early stage. Jamaica believed that human rights were
indivisible and that the separation reflected in the fact that there were two
Covenants was artificial. In the United dations and in other forums Jamaica had
supported and initiated action designed to suarantee and promote respect for human

/...




B/L930/1C. 1/8R.20
English
Pace O

(}lr. Bartlett, Obgserver, Jamaica)

rights and if it had focused more on economic, social and cultural rights it was
because of its awareness that in many societies those ripghts were not accorded the
same importance as civil and political ripghts.

29. In connexion with articles 1 to 5 of the Covencnt, Jamaica, as a country which
zealougly guarded its right to self-determination in the political, economic, social
and cultural fields, firmly supported the right of all neoples to self-determination
and to dispose freely of their wealth and resources. VWith reference to article 2,
the Government had taken measures ailined at overcomins. the critical economic
difficulties which prevented the full realization of the provisions of the

Covenant, including the right to work. Some of those measures were described on
pages 2 and 3 of the report. In addition, Jamaica's support for the achievement

of the new international economic order reflected its concern that the development
efforts of the third world should not continue to be impeded by the existing unjust
world order. In relation to article 3, Jamaica fully supported the equality of men
and women, and it had participated actively in the drafting and adoption of the
Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrinination against Women and was
currently considering an early ratification of that Convention. Jamaica respected
the principles contained in articles L4 and 5.

30. The report described the legislation, the administrative and institutional
structures and the policies which had been created up to 1979 in Jamaica to give
practical expression to Jamaica's commitiment to denocracy, its defence of human
rights and its promotion of economic development within the context of an
egalitarian society. Jamaica had a long history of colonial dependence, and in the
lote 1940s and 1950s efforts had been made by the Jamaican administration to lessen
that dependence and diversify the economy. There had been great economi: growth
during the 1960s and a flourishing export sector had developed. ievertheless, the
benefits of development had not been evenly distributed, and the lot of the masses
had not improved to the extent that might have been expected. The current
Government had been elected in 1972 on the basis of its policy of change and during
the 1970s it had worked to create an egalitarian soclety in order to spread the
benefits of economic development throughout society. Free education had been
introduced for the first time: adult education had become a major government
programme and other training programmes had been developed, all with the aim of
equipping citizens to exercise the ripht to work. Policies had been implemented
to provide additional employment opprortunities, for example, land reform had been
introduced to make available previously unused or under-utilized land to farmers.
Lepislation had been enacted in the interests ol the workers, including the
Fmployment (Termination and Redundancy Payments) Act, 197k, the Labtour Relations
and Industrial Disputes Act of 1975, the imployment (Equal Pay for ilen and Women)
Act of 1975, special orders under the !finimum Vage Act which for the first time
provided o minimum wage Tor certain catepories of workers, and the ilaternity Leave
Act, 1979, under which women who had accumulated 52 weeks of service were entitled
to maternity leave benefits such as 11 weeks' maternity leave, 8 of which were on

full pay.



£/1980/%WG.1/3R.20
Inglish
Page T

(Mr. Bartlett, Observer, Jamaica)

31. uvespite the heavy strains on the national budget, the Goverument relentlessly
pursued its goal of social Jjustice. During the 1970s Jamaica's economy had been
bulffeted by inflation, shar» increases in oil prices and crises in the international
monetary system. In addition, the brain-drain had accelerated and wany of the more
affluent Jawaicans, including professionals, had wirrated to developed cuuntries;
that exodus had been accompanied by an illegel outflow of currency. By 1977

Jamaica had had a severe foreign exchange crisis and it had made agreements with
the International ilonetary Fund in 1977 and 19730 calling for extensive devaluations,
sharp increases in the cost of imported goods, severe restrictions on budgetary
expenditure and the relaxation of price controls. The sudden and savage

adjustment of the economy had been made at tremendous social expense, and the

severe econonic crisis wvhich Jamaica was still experiencing had resulted in great
setbacks to the Government's efforts. The Government's priorities in its efforts
to stimulate economic recovery and maximize employment opportunities included
measures to promote the local nroduction of food, ensure the necessary foreign
exchange for export industries, expand the bauxite and tourism industries, monitor
prices and prevent leakages of foreisn exchange.

32. ils. RICO (Spain), referring to the information on the Overseas Employment
Service on page 6 of the report, asked how the Jamaican Government guaranteed the
rights of workers who were provided with employment overseas and ensured that their
working conditions were no less favourable than those prevailing in the receiving
countries.

33. ilr. AL-KAISI (Iraq) noted that on page 14 of the regort it was stated that
labour legislation in Jamaica was silent with respect to the rigcht of trade unions
to lederate and also that, although labour legislation did not expressly provide

for a right to strike, it had been recognized that trade unions exercised that right
in the legitimate pursuit of their interests:; he asked how it was possible for

trade unions to exercise the legitimate right to strike if there was no provision
for their right to federate.

34, . ABDUL-AZIZ (Libyan Arab Jamahiriya) said that the report showed the efforts
that were being made by the Jamaican Government to improve the situation of the
workers and enable them to enjoy the right to work and the right to favourable
conditions of work. He associated himself with the question asked by the
representative of Spain.

35, lir. SALMENPERA (Finland) asked whether there had been any improvement in the
level of unemployment in Jamaica since the report had been prepared, and what the
coverage and amounts of unemployment benefits were.

36. ifr. VOLLERS (Federal Republic of Germany) said that the information provided
in the report was relatively up to date, and the Jamaican Government had made great
efforts to provide information not only about its achievements but also about the
problems encountered. He requested further information about the Overseas
Tmnloyment Service, he asked how many people had been sent overseas by the Service,
how long they stayed abroad, on average: how the selection was made; whether the
Service prescribed minimum wages and working conditions when it sent workers abroad:
and whether any significant problems had been encountered.

/..



S/1L960/UG.1/OR. 20
vnelish
Page ©

3T, ro dUJIL (Taenan) cowd £io4 the rerort indicnted £t +he Jamaiean Govermant
was making good progress in inplementing the rishts covered by articles 6 to 9 of
the Covenant. He asked vhether the Jamaican Governnent had encountered any
particular ditficulties affecting the degree of fulfilment of its obligationz under
the Covenant.

Ju. Q{L_Q§§££§§~(Earbados) asked what progress had been made in promoting wvorker
participation, wentioned on paje 2 of the rerort, and whether the efforts had
extended to the public gector as well as the private sector. In connexion with

the information provided on statutory regulations, on page 13, he asked whether

the information on wurkers’ remuneration which was being assembled by the Pay
donitoring and Research Unit had become available. The report mentioned, on page 16,
that under the Vomen (Umployment of) Act, women could not werk at night except

in certain trades- he asked which trades those were. Page 25 of the report

referred to family allowances; he asked vhat amounts of allowances were payable.

39. ilr. SANSON (International Labour Orfanisation) drew attention to the comments
concerning Jamaica in the third report of the ILO (E/1980/35). The Committee of
Dxperts had referred to the difficulties encountcred by the Jamaican Government

in pursuing its employment policy and tc the high level of unemployment,
particularly among women and youn; people and had requested further information

on the steps taken by the Government to remedy that situation, and the results
achieved., It was clear that such measures could achieve only a gradual improvement
in the situation, but the Covenant did provide for the prosressive implementation
of the rights it established. In view of Jamaica’s ratification of the
Discrimination (Employment and Occupation) Convention, 1950 (N¥o. 111), the Committee
of Dxperts had asked for information on the practical steps taken to ensure the
participation of women in vocational training, and on the remedies available to

a person who considered he had been subject to discriminatory practices.

). The Committee of Dxperts had noted Jamaica'’s ratification of the Equal
Reimmeration Convention, 1951 (No. 100) and had asked about the practical
implenentation of the legislation in that resard and requested information on the
measures taken to abolish the distinctions established in certain minimum wage
orders which had provided for rates differing according to sex. It had also
indicated that additional information would be desirable on the criteria roverning
prowotion in the private sector in Jamaica.

L1. On the subject of workin; conditions, the Committee of LIxperts had asked a
nummber of questions about the protection of workers apgainst accidents and work-
related diseases, and had requested additional information on the steps taken

to ensure safe and healthy working conditions in apriculture and in inland, air
and maritine transport. In addition, it had indicated that additional information
would be desirable on overtime practices so as to ensure that the total hours
worked conformed to the limits envisarsed under the Covenant.

42, With rerard to article 8 of the Covenant, the Committee of Experts had

referred to a number of natters it had raised in connexion with the Freedom of
Association and Frotection of the Right to Organize Convention. Those matters

/oos



E/1980/WG,.1/SR.20
Fnplish
Tage 9

(Mr. Samson., ILO)

included the list of essential services in which the right to strike was limited,
the extent of the powers bestowed on the 'inister of Labour in 1978 to impose
compulsory arbitration and the restrictions imposed on collective bargaining in
10783,

43, 1In relation to social security, the Committee of Lxperts had noted that some
continpencies were not covered under the Jamaican system; however, the Jamaican
representative had indicated that provision was now made for maternity benefits.

Lk, Mr. BARTLETT (Observer for Jamaica), replying to the points raised, said that
there were a number of agencies responsible for protecting the rights of Jamaican
migrant workers and that such workers benefited considerably from the opportunity
to work abroad. Jamaican Fmbassics, High Commission and Consulates played a vital
role by notifying the Government of any abuses reported tc them so that the employer
in question could be contacted and the abuses corrected. A regional organization,
the British West Indies Central Labour Organization, was responsible for
maintaining liaison with workers in foreipn countries and the Jamaican agencies
concerned: it had a permanent office in Washington, D.C. with responsibility for
Jamaican workers in the United States. Officials and government ministers visited
places at which Jamaicans were employed to ensure that the workers' rights were
respected. Jamaicans could be very vocal about any mistreatment, and would be
certain to give maximum publicity to any abuse.

45, Since the submission of the Jamaican report no further official statisties
had been produced on the level of unemployment in the country, and none would be
published for several months to come. In his personal view, it was likely that
the situation had deteriorated since the submission of the report. The Jamalcan
economy was not capable of bearing the costs of an unemployment benefits scheme.

L6, Jamaica had no particular difficulty in implementing the Covenant as far as
its philosophy or its will to comply with the Covenant were concerned; the only
difficulties it nad encountered were, as he had indicated, economic problems.

47. TFinally, he assured the representative of ILO that the points he had raised
would be brought to the attention of the competent authorities and that the
necessary responses would be submitted to the organisaticn as soon as possible.

48. r. ROBINSON (Observer for Jamaica), replying to the question raised by the
representative of Irag, said that un”~r the Jamaican Constitution every person was
entitled to associate freely with othuv »eople and to form or belong to a trade
union of his choice. It logically followed, even if there was no specific provision
to that effect, that trade unions could associate into federations or form
confederations with other trade unions. He did not consider that there was any
intrinsic connexion between the right to form federations and the right to strike.
The right to strike was not expressly provided for in the law or Constitution of
Jamaica and in certain industries the law had introduced the concept of an unlawful
industrial dispute: in such industries ~ those providing essential services -
disputes were permissible only under certain clearly defined circumstances.
Although it might be deduced that a "right to strike' existed in other industries,

/o




E/1980/WG.1/SR.20
Puglish
Page 10

(Mr. Robinson, Observer, Jamaica)

he would be cautious about identifying it as such, particularly since the matter
had yet to be tested before the Jamaican courts. Under an Act of 1975, the
Minister of Labour had the power to issue instructions to those involved in a
dispute which, although not affecting essential services, was likely to prove
seriously detrimental to the public good: if the persons concerned failed to comply
with those instructions, the dispute could be declared unlawful. So far it had

not been necessary to exercise those powers.

49, The VWomen (Employment of) Act to which the representative of Barbados had
referred could be considered a relic from Jamaica's colonial days. The Minister
of Labour had issued orders under which women could work at night in a number of
different areas of industrial life, and the Act had declined markedly in
importance since tht introduction of legislation requiring that men and women
should receive equal pay for essentially similar work.

50. The other questions asked by members of the Working Group would have to be
referred back to the Jamaican authorities, and replies would be provided at a
later stage.

The meseting rose at 12.50 p.m.






